

B. SAP Report

Copies of the SAP's report of their recommendations will be available approximately 45 working days after the meeting, and will be posted on the FIFRA/SAP Internet Home Page at <http://www.epa.gov/scipoly/sap/> or may be obtained by contacting the Public Information Records Integrity Branch (PIRIB) at the address and telephone number listed under Unit I.B.

List of Subjects

Environmental protection, Arsenic, Children Exposures, Contaminated soil, Treated wood.

Dated: September 11, 2001.

Vanessa Vu,

Director, Office of Science Coordination and Policy, Office of Pesticide Programs.

[FR Doc. 01-23312 Filed 9-18-01; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6560-50-S

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

[OPP-66293; FRL-6802-4]

Oxythioquinox Products Cancellation Order

AGENCY: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: This notice announces EPA's cancellation order for the product and use cancellations as requested by Bayer Corporation for all products containing oxythioquinox (Morestan), 6-methyl-1,3-dithiolo (4,5-b) quinoxalin-2-one or chinomethionate, and accepted by EPA, pursuant to section 6(f) of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA). This order follows up a March 17, 1999 notice of receipt of cancellation request and proposed existing stocks provisions. The Agency did not receive any substantive comments opposing the requested cancellation. Accordingly, EPA is issuing an order granting the cancellation request. Any distribution, sale, or use of the products subject to this cancellation order is only permitted in accordance with the terms of the existing stocks provisions of this cancellation order.

DATES: The cancellations are effective September 19, 2001.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Mark Wilhite, Special Review and Reregistration Division (7508C), Office of Pesticide Programs, Environmental Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW., Washington, DC 20460, telephone number: (703) 308-8174; fax

number: (703) 308-8586; e-mail address: wilhite.mark@epa.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. General Information

A. Does this Action Apply to Me?

This action is directed to the public in general. You may be potentially affected by this action if you manufacture, sell, distribute, or use oxythioquinox products. The Congressional Review Act, 5 U.S.C. 801 *et seq.*, as added by the Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, does not apply because this action is not a rule, for purposes of 5 U.S.C. 804(3). Since other entities may also be interested, the Agency has not attempted to describe all the specific entities that may be affected by this action. If you have any questions regarding the applicability of this action to a particular entity, consult the person listed under **FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT**.

B. How Can I Get Additional Information, Including Copies of this Document and Other Related Documents?

1. *Electronically.* You may obtain electronic copies of this document, and certain other related documents that might be available electronically, from the EPA Internet Home Page at <http://www.epa.gov/>. To access this document, on the Home Page select "Laws and Regulations," "Regulations and Proposed Rules," and then look up the entry for this document under the "**Federal Register**—Environmental Documents." You can also go directly to the **Federal Register** listings at <http://www.epa.gov/fedrgstr/>.

2. *In person.* The Agency has established an official record for this action under docket control number OPP-66293. The official record consists of the documents specifically referenced in this action, any public comments received during an applicable comment period, and other information related to this action, including any information claimed as Confidential Business Information (CBI). This official record includes the documents that are physically located in the docket, as well as the documents that are referenced in those documents. The public version of the official record does not include any information claimed as CBI. The public version of the official record, which includes printed, paper versions of any electronic comments submitted during an applicable comment period, is available for inspection in the Public Information and Records Integrity Branch (PIRIB), Rm. 119, Crystal Mall

#2, 1921 Jefferson Davis Hwy., Arlington, VA, from 8:30 a.m. to 4 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding legal holidays. The PIRIB telephone number is (703) 305-5805.

II. Receipt of Requests to Cancel Registrations

A. Background

Oxythioquinox (trade name Morestan) is an insecticide/miticide/fungicide first registered in 1968, to control mites, mite eggs on ornamental plants in green houses, nurseries and landscapes. On October 17, 1996, Bayer requested voluntary cancellation of all food uses but citrus. Bayer also requested cancellation of all but two of the 24(c) registrations (California and Louisiana). Subsequently, on June 4, 1997, the Agency received a request from Bayer to cancel registration of the remaining food-use products: Morestan 25WP (3125-117) and Morestan Solupak 25 WP 9 (3125-302). These cancellations were announced in the **Federal Register** of August 27, 1997 (62 FR 45416) (FRL-5737-4), and became final March 9, 1998. Initiation of the exiting stocks period began when the Agency received the request for cancellations and ran for 18 months. On February 1, 1999, Bayer requested cancellation of its remaining oxythioquinox registrations. In a **Federal Register** notice dated March 17, 1999 (64 FR 13191) (FRL-6067-8), EPA announced its receipt of Bayer's February 1, 1999 cancellation request. The Agency did not receive any substantive comments opposing the requested cancellation and is therefore issuing a cancellation order in today's notice granting the cancellation request. After canceling these product registrations, there will be no remaining registered products containing oxythioquinox.

In its February 1, 1999 cancellation request, Bayer conditioned its request on EPA's permitting sale and distribution of the existing stocks for 18 months, and use for 2 years, after the cancellation becomes effective. In other words, Bayer intended to stop sale and distribution sometime in 2001 and asked that EPA provide adequate time for the end users to exhaust their supplies. However, the cancellation did not take place in 1999, as both EPA and Bayer contemplated. In response to EPA's plan to issue a cancellation order now, Bayer indicated that an existing stocks provision permitting sale and distribution for 18 months is unnecessary, because Bayer has already stopped sale and distribution of these products. However, both EPA and Bayer believe that allowing use until

September 30, 2002, would be necessary to provide adequate notice to end users and to allow them to exhaust their supplies. Accordingly, EPA includes in the cancellation order an existing stocks provision permitting the use of the existing stocks until September 30, 2002. Any distribution, sale, or use of the products subject to this cancellation order is only permitted in accordance with the terms of the existing stocks provisions of this cancellation order.

III. Terminations Pursuant to Voluntary Cancellation Requests

Under section 6(f)(1) of FIFRA, registrants may request at any time that “a pesticide registration of the registrant be canceled or amended to terminate one or more pesticide uses.” (7 U.S.C. 136d(f)(1)). Consistent with 6(f)(1) of FIFRA, EPA is issuing the order of cancellation of EPA registrations listed in Table 1 below. Oxythioquinox (Morestan) will no longer appear in any registered products.

TABLE 1.—PRODUCTS REGISTRATION CANCELLATIONS

Product Name	EPA Registration Number
Morestan 4 Ornamental Miticide	3125–381
Morestan 4 Nursery Miticide	3125–437
Morestan 4 Technical	3125–205

IV. Cancellation Order

Pursuant to section 6(f) of FIFRA, EPA hereby approves the requested oxythioquinox product registration

cancellations, as identified in Table 1. Any distribution, sale, or use of existing stocks of the products identified in Table 1 in a manner inconsistent with the terms of this Order or the Existing Stock Provisions in Unit V. will be considered a violation of section 12(a)(2)(K) of FIFRA and/or section 12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA.

V. Existing Stocks Provision

Pursuant to section 6(f) of FIFRA, EPA is granting the voluntary request for the cancellation of the product registrations identified in Table 1. For purposes of the cancellation order, the term “existing stocks” will be defined, pursuant to EPA’s existing stocks policy of June 26, 1991 (56 FR 29362) (FRL–3846–4), as those stocks of a registered pesticide product which are currently in the United States and which have been packaged, labeled, and released for shipment prior to the effective date of the amendment or cancellation. Any distribution, sale, or use of existing stocks after the effective date of the cancellation order that is not consistent with the terms of that order will be considered a violation of section 12(a)(2)(K) and/or 12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA.

1. *Sale and distribution.* All sale and distribution of the existing stocks shall be unlawful as of the effective date of the cancellation order, except for the purposes of shipping such stocks for export consistent with section 17 of FIFRA or for proper disposal.

2. *Use.* All use of the existing stocks shall be unlawful as of September 30, 2002.

Lists of Subjects

Environmental protection, Pesticides and pests.

Dated: September 7, 2001.

Jack E. Housenger,
Acting Director, Special Review and Reregistration Division, Office of Pesticide Programs.
[FR Doc. 01–23224 Filed 9–18–01; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6560–50–S

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

[OPP–30514; FRL–6794–5]

Pesticide Product; Registration Applications

AGENCY: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: This notice announces receipt of applications to register pesticide products containing new active ingredients not included in any previously registered products pursuant to the provisions of section 3(c)(4) of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), as amended.

DATES: Written comments, identified by the docket control number OPP–30514, must be received on or before October 19, 2001.

ADDRESSES: Comments may be submitted by mail, electronically, or in person. Please follow the detailed instructions for each method as provided in Unit I. of the SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION. To ensure proper receipt by EPA, it is imperative that you identify docket control number OPP–30514 in the subject line on the first page of your response.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: The Regulatory Action Leader listed in the table below:

Regulatory Action Leader	Telephone number/e-mail address	Mailing address	File symbol
Driss Benmhend	(703) 308–9525; benmhend.driss@epa.gov	Biopesticides and Pollution Prevention Division (7511C), Office of Pesticide Programs, Environmental Protection Agency, 1200 Pennsylvania Ave., Washington, DC 20460	34704–IUE and 34704–IUG
Alan Reynolds	(703) 605–0515; reynolds.alan@epa.gov	Do.	73049-AI

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. General Information

A. Does this Action Apply to Me?

You may be affected by this action if you are an agricultural producer, food manufacturer, or pesticide manufacturer. Potentially affected

categories and entities may include, but are not limited to:

Cat-egories	NAICS codes	Examples of poten-tially affected enti-ties
Industry	111 112	Crop production Animal production

Cat-egories	NAICS codes	Examples of poten-tially affected enti-ties
	311 32532	Food manufacturing Pesticide manufac-turing